CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES - MARCH 3, 2015

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on March 3, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the Council
Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Gerald Bright, Vice Chair
Janet DePuy, Commissioner
Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner
Thomas Maxwell, Commissioner
Randy Roland, Commissioner
Bill Ferrell, Alternate
Stephen Springs, Alternate

MEMBER ABSENT: Barry Hand, Chairman
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Assistant Director — Dev. Svcs — Planning
Israel Roberts, Development Manager

Chris Shacklett, Senior Planner
Cindy Wilson, Administrative Secretary |

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff regarding
staff reports and agenda items. No action was taken.

MINUTES
1. Approval of the minutes of the regular business meeting of February 3, 2015.

Motion: Commissioner Springs made a motion to approve the minutes as presented; second by
Commissioner Frederick. Motion passed 7-0.

CONSENT ITEMS
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan Commission and
will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion of these items
unless desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate
consideration.

2. Site Plan, Landscape Plan and Elevations — Brick Row Townhomes (companion to Item 6):
A request for approval of site, landscape and elevations plans for sixteen (16) townhomes. The
1.63-acre site is located at the northwest corner of Spring Valley Road and Greenville Avenue.

3. Site Plan, Landscape and Elevations — Starbucks (companion to Item 7): A request for
approval of site, landscape and elevation plans for the development of an 800 square foot drive-
thru restaurant. The 0.35-acre site is located at 501 W. Belt Line Road, southwest corner of Belt
Line Road and Central Expressway.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-03-03 Minutes.doc 1



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

March 3, 2015

4. Amending Plat — Bush Central Station Addition, Lot 1A, Block I: A request for approval of an
amending plat to combine two (2) lots into a single lot totaling 11.62 acres, located at 1201 State
Street and 3661 Plano Road; the southwest corner of PGBH and Plano Road.

5. Amending Plat — Hill Street, Hunt Street, Newton Street, and Keffler Street: A request for
approval of an amending plat to change street names, located between Routh Creek Parkway and
Plano Road, north of Cityline Drive.

Motion: Commissioner DePuy made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented;
second by Commissioner Maxwell. Motion approved 7-0.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

6. Replat - McKamy Park Addition, Lots 1D, 15-28, Block A and Lots 26-29, Block I
(companion to Item 2): Consider and take necessary action on a request for approval of a replat to
accommodate the development of sixteen (16) townhomes on a 1.63-acre site located at the
northwest corner of Spring Valley Road and Greenville Avenue.

Mr. Roberts stated the applicant was requesting the replat for the development of sixteen (16)
townhome lots and the dedication of an alley. The replat complied with the City’s development
standards.

With no questions for staff, Vice Chair Bright opened the public hearing.

Mr. Scot Whitwer, representing CB Jeni Homes, 2805 N. Dallas Parkway, Plano, Texas, said he
was available for questions.

No questions were asked and no further comments were received in favor or opposed and Vice
Chair Bright closed the public hearing.

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to approve Item 6 as presented; second by
Commissioner Maxwell. Motion approved 7-0.

7. Replat — Richardson Heights Village Shopping Center Addition, Lot 4A (companion to Item
3): Consider and take necessary action on a request for approval of a replat to accommodate the
development of an 800 square foot drive-thru restaurant. The 0.35-acre site is located at 501 W.
Belt Line Road at the southwest corner of Belt Line Road and Central Expressway.

Mr. Roberts advised the applicant was requesting the replat to dedicate the easements necessary for
the development of an 800-square foot, drive-thru restaurant. He added the replat complied with
the City’s Subdivision regulations.

No questions were asked of staff and Vice Chair Bright opened the public hearing.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-02-03 Minutes.doc 2



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

March 3, 2015

Mr. Jonathan Spencer, representing Starbucks, 5976 S. Bannock Street, Littleton, Colorado, stated
he was available for questions.

Commission DePuy asked for the timeframe for starting and finishing the project.

Mr. Spencer replied they would have their submittal for a building permit ready within the next
week and as soon as the permits were obtained, the work on the environmental items would begin.
He added their goal was to have the project completed by the end of the year.

With no other comments or questions in favor or opposed, Vice Chair Bright closed the public
hearing.

Motion: Commissioner Frederick made a motion to approve Item 7 as presented; second by
Commissioner DePuy. Motion approved 7-0.

8. Zoning File 15-01 — Smoking Establishment: Consider and take necessary action on a request
for change in zoning of an 8.1-acre site from I-M(1) Industrial with special conditions to PD
Planned Development to allow additional uses and a request for approval of a Special Permit for a
smoking establishment. The 3,700 square foot lease space is located at 1002 N. Central
Expressway, east side of Central Expressway, north of Arapaho Road.

Mr. Shacklett stated there were two parts to the applicant’s request: first, change the base zoning on
the site from 1-M(1) Industrial with special conditions to PD Planned Development with modified
development standards; and second, to request approval of a Special Permit for a smoking
establishment.

Regarding the first requested change, Mr. Shacklett noted the original zoning permitted the
property to be developed as industrial with special conditions allowing specific retail uses
(Ordinance 2381), but limited the retail uses to no more than fifty percent of the floor area. He
added the requested change in zoning would allow the same uses as those in LR-M(1) and LR-
M(2), Local Retail, excluding restaurant, bars and clubs, as well as removing the fifty percent cap
for retail uses. In addition, the property owner was looking to establish a minimum of 270 parking
spaces for the entire site.

Mr. Shacklett noted the second part of the applicant’s request was for a Special Permit for a
smoking establishment as per the change to the City’s Comprehensive Zoning Ordinances (CZO)
in 2011. He added the applicants currently have a smoking establishment in the City, but were
looking for a larger space to accommodate their needs as well as an area where alcoholic beverages
would be sold and served.

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation stating no correspondence in support or opposition had
been received.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-02-03 Minutes.doc 3



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

March 3, 2015

Commissioner DePuy asked if the Special Permit was going to be tied to the applicant or to the
lease space. She also wanted to know if the PD would have any adverse effect on the other tenants
in the complex.

Mr. Shacklett replied that the Special Permit would be tied to the lease space, and the PD would
allow a broader range of uses but was not removing any of the current uses.

Commissioner Ferrell asked if the Special Permit was tied to the location as opposed to the owner,
would there be a possibility it could become another type of smoking establishment in the future.
He also wanted to know if the request was approved did it fit with the Comprehensive Plan for the
area.

Mr. Shacklett said a vapor bar would not be allowed, but a smoking establishment could include
something similar to a hookah bar.

Regarding whether the business would fit in with the Comprehensive Plan, Mr. Shacklett stated the
property was on the edge of an area designated as a transit village that would have entertainment,
residential, hospitality, and offices uses.

With no other questions for staff, Vice Chair Bright opened the public hearing.

Mrs. Mary Bedosky, 1805 Park Meadow Lane, Richardson, Texas, stated she was the President of
their company in addition to her job as a banker, but her husband, who was General Manager,
would be making the comments.

Mr. Matt Bedosky, 1805 Park Meadow Lane, Richardson, Texas, stated they leased their existing
site at Plano and Arapaho Roads in 2005 and have seen their business grow by meeting customer
needs and providing a variety of tobacco products. He added that because of the growth of their
business they were cramped for retail space and the new location would allow room to expand their
humidor in response to the expanding customer base.

Mr. Bedosky said that in addition to cigars, pipes and tobacco, their customers had been asking
about having alcoholic beverages available.

Commissioner Roland asked if the applicant had spoken to any of the adjacent tenants. He also
wanted to know what ten percent of the business from the sale of alcoholic beverages amounted to.

Mr. Bedosky replied that he went into the men’s store about a month ago to discuss plans to seal
the adjacent walls so no smoke travels through the wall.

Regarding the percentage of sale of tobacco versus alcoholic beverages, Mr. Bedosky said that
cigars range in price from $3 to $30, and box sales of cigars can range in price from $150 to $400.
All of which would be available with a larger selection of products due to the increase in floor size
of the new lease space.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-02-03 Minutes.doc 4



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

March 3, 2015

Commissioner Ferrell asked if the applicant knew what would happen to the old location once they
moved to the new site, and did they operate under a Special Permit at their current location. He
also wanted to know why the applicant was requesting to have the Special Permit tied to the
location as opposed to having it tied to the applicant.

Mr. Bedosky replied they have been on a month-to-month lease for the past three years, and Mr.
Shacklett said the current location was in place prior to the changes in the City’s smoking
ordinance so a Special Permit was not required.

Regarding the Special Permit being tied to the lease space, Mr. Bedosky said that when they were
ready to retire, they wanted to make the business as attractive as possible to future buyers with
superior products, a larger humidor, and ease of transition without having to wait for a permit.

Vice Chair Bright asked if the patio area would be secure for patrons especially in the evening. He
also wanted to know what the hours of operation would be for the new store.

Mr. Bedosky said the area was well lit, but did not think the area would be used much because of
the noise level from the nearby freeway. He added the hours of operation would be from 10:30
a.m. to 9:00 p.m.

Vice Chair Bright asked if there were restrictions on hours of operation.

Mr. Shacklett replied that as proposed, the business would be prohibited from operating between
the hours of 12:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m.

Mr. Bedosky added that if the Special Permit was granted for the lease space, they would be more
than willing to limit the operating hours.

Commissioner Frederick pointed out that the proposed location did not have many parking spots in
close proximity and asked if the applicant knew which businesses were east of their location.

Mr. Bedosky said there were currently three spaces, but he understood the owner of the property
would be making some changes and those would be reduced to one space and a handicap space.

Mr. Shacklett stated that two of the suites adjoining the area are listed as warehouse/office so he
did not think that business would have a high demand for parking.

No other comments in favor or opposed were received and Vice Chair Bright closed the public
hearing.

Commissioner DePuy said she was originally concerned about tying the Special Permit to the suite,
but after the applicant explained their thought process, she did not have a problem with the request.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-02-03 Minutes.doc 5



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

March 3, 2015

Commissioner Maxwell stated he did not think there was enough control over the type of
establishments that could use the space should the applicant move from the location. He also
wanted to know if there was any way to tie the permit to the applicant.

Mr. Shacklett stated Mr. Maxwell was correct; the definition of a smoking establishment did not
distinguish between specific types of smoking establishments. Regarding tying the permit to the
applicant, Mr. Shacklett said that the Commission has the authority to do so if desired.

Commissioner Maxwell repeated his concern over tying the permit to the lease space and said he
was more in favor of tying the permit to the applicant.

Mr. Chavez suggested the option of limiting the hours of operation because other types of smoking
establishments usually stay open much later.

Commissioner Frederick thought Mr. Chavez’ suggestion was a good compromise between the
Commission’s favorable stand on the application and concern with future use of the space.

Commissioner Maxwell again stated he was in favor of limiting the permit to the applicant even
though any future buyer may have to come before the Commission to get another Special Permit.

Commissioner Ferrell concurred with Mr. Maxwell and added that although the current cigar
business seems to be in vogue, he did not know if that would be the same in the future.

Commissioner Springs also thought it would the best to tie the permit to the applicant.
Vice Chair Bright asked the applicant if he had any comments.

Mr. Bedosky concurred with Mr. Ferrell that there was no way of telling what would happen in the
future, and their exit strategy was not based on selling the corporation, but based on selling the
inventory, the fixture, and the good will, which was defined by the ease of transitioning the
business to the new owner as well as the volume of business.

Mr. Bedosky pointed out that the smoking permit they currently have is tied to the lease space and
they are asking to move that to the new location.

Commissioner DePuy asked if the applicant thought there would be a problem with selling the
business if the permit was tied to him as opposed to the lease space.

Mr. Bedosky said it would be easier to sell the business with the permit tied to the space as
opposed to having the permit tied to him. He added that he did not think another type of smoking
establishment, such as a hookah lounge, would be able to purchase the business based on the cost
of the humidor and inventory that would range in price from $700,000 to $800,000.

Vice Chair Bright asked about the capacity of the establishment and also wanted to know what the
restrictions were for the cigar shop at the Shire.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-02-03 Minutes.doc 6



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

March 3, 2015

Mr. Bedosky replied there will be 25 to 26 seats in the lounge.

For the cigar shop in the Shire, Mr. Shacklett stated the business was a legal non-confirming use,
the same as the applicant, because the shop was in business prior to the change in the ordinance.

Vice Chair Bright said he thought the request was an appropriate use for the location, but was in
favor of possibly restricting the hours as suggested by Mr. Chavez.

Commissioner Springs said he was less concerned after the applicant explained the “buy in” value
of the business, and concurred with Mr. Bright’s idea of restricting the hours.

Commissioner Roland said his only issue with changing the hours would be on how to deal with
special events such as the super bowl and New Year’s Eve which tend to go past midnight.

Commissioner DePuy stated that with the expense the applicant will be putting into the business,
she did not think someone wanting to open a hookah lounge would be able to afford the space.

Commissioner Springs concurred with Mr. Roland and asked if the applicant would have to get a
permit every time there was a special event that would go past the listed hours of operation.

Mr. Shacklett replied that going past the hours of operation as listed in the Special Permit would
not be allowed.

Commissioner Maxwell said he still thought the safest thing to do would be to tie the Special
Permit to the applicant because the inventory and humidor could be moved to another location, but
the Special Permit would stay with the lease space.

Motion: Commissioner Frederick made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 15-01 as
presented; second by Commissioner DePuy. Motion approved 5-2 with Commissioners
Ferrell and Maxwell opposed.

9. Zoning File 15-02 — Event Center: Consider and take necessary action on a request for
revocation of Ordinance 4057 and approval of a Special Permit for an approximately 4,500 square
foot event/community center to be located at 999 E. Arapaho Road, north side of Arapaho Road
between Executive Drive and International Parkway. The property is currently zoned 1-M(1)
Industrial.

Mr. Shacklett advised the applicant was requesting to revoke the previous Special Permit because it
was tied to the previous applicant and approval of a similar Special Permit tied to his business. He
added that because a special event/community center was an unlisted use in the Comprehensive
Zoning Ordinance (CZO), the request would require a Special Permit.

Mr. Shacklett noted the property is located on the north side of Arapaho Road west of International
Parkway and is a 34,000 square foot office/warehouse flex building. He stated the same required

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-02-03 Minutes.doc 7



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

March 3, 2015

parking spaces and hours of operation approved in the previous ordinance were being requested in
current application.

With no questions for staff, Vice Chair Bright opened the public hearing.

Mr. David Hensen, leasing agent, 7405 Green Valley Lane, Frisco, Texas, stated he was available
for questions.

No questions were asked and no further comments were received in favor or opposed and Vice
Chair Bright closed the public hearing.

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 15-02 as
presented; second by Commissioner Maxwell. Motion approved 7-0.

ADJOURN

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Hand adjourned the regular business
meeting at 8:08 p.m.

Gerald Bright, Vice Chairman
City Plan Commission

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-02-03 Minutes.doc 8



